
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Resources Department 
Town Hall, Upper Street, London, N1 2UD 

 

 

AGENDA FOR THE LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE D 

 

Members of Licensing Sub Committee D are summoned to an additional meeting, which will 
be held in Committee Room 4, Town Hall, Upper Street, N1 2UD on, 27 September 2023 
at 6.30 pm. 

 
 
 
 

Enquiries to : Jackie Tunstall 

Tel : 020 7527 3068 

E-mail : democracy@islington.gov.uk 

Despatched : 19 September 2023 

 
 

Membership Substitute 
 
Councillor Phil Graham (Chair) 

Councillor Marian Spall (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Clare Jeapes 
 

All other members of the Licensing 

committee 

 
Quorum: is 3 Councillors 
 
 

Welcome :  Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting.  
Procedures to be followed at the meeting are attached. 

Public Document Pack



 
 
 

 

A.  
 

Formal matters 
 

Page 

1.  Introductions and procedure 

 

 

2.  Apologies for absence 
 

 

3.  Declarations of substitute members 
 

 

4.  Declarations of interest 

 

 

 If you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest* in an item of business: 
 if it is not yet on the council’s register, you must declare both the 

existence and details of it at the start of the meeting or when it 
becomes apparent; 

 you may choose to declare a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest that is 
already in the register in the interests of openness and transparency.   

In both the above cases, you must leave the room without participating in 
discussion of the item. 
 
If you have a personal interest in an item of business and you intend to speak 
or vote on the item you must declare both the existence and details of it at the 
start of the meeting or when it becomes apparent but you may participate in 
the discussion and vote on the item. 
 

*(a)Employment, etc - Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation 
carried on for profit or gain. 

(b) Sponsorship - Any payment or other financial benefit in respect of your 
expenses in carrying out duties as a member, or of your election; including 
from a trade union. 

(c) Contracts - Any current contract for goods, services or works, between 
you or your partner (or a body in which one of you has a beneficial interest) 
and the council. 

(d) Land - Any beneficial interest in land which is within the council’s area.  

(e) Licences- Any licence to occupy land in the council’s area for a month or 
longer. 

(f)  Corporate tenancies - Any tenancy between the council and a body in 
which you or your partner have a beneficial interest. 

 (g) Securities - Any beneficial interest in securities of a body which has a 
place of business or land in the council’s area, if the total nominal value of 
the securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the total issued share 
capital of that body or of any one class of its issued share capital.   

 
This applies to all members present at the meeting. 
 

 

5.  Order of Business 

 
 
 

 

 



 
 
 

B.  
 

Items for Decision 
 

Page 

1.  Crystals Pizza and Fried Chicken, 4 York Way, N1 9AA - Premises licence 
variation 

 

1 - 30 

2.  The Robin, 29 Crouch Hill, N4 4AP - New premises licence 
 

31 - 66 

C.  
 

Urgent non-exempt items 
 

 

 Any non-exempt items which the Chair agrees should be considered 

urgently by reason of special circumstances. The reasons for urgency will 
be agreed by the Chair and recorded in the minutes. 

 

D.  
 

Exclusion of public and press 
 

 

 To consider whether, in view of the nature of the remaining items on the 

agenda, any of them are likely to involve the disclosure of exempt or 
confidential information within the terms of the Access to Information 
Procedure Rules in the Constitution and, if so, whether to exclude the 

press and public during discussion thereof. 

 

E.  
 

Urgent Exempt Items (if any) 
 

 

 Any exempt items which the Chair agrees should be considered urgently 
by reason of special circumstances.  The reasons for urgency will be 

agreed by the Chair and recorded in the minutes. 

 

 
 



 
 
 

 
ISLINGTON LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEES -   

  

PROCEDURE FOR HEARING LICENSING APPLICATIONS UNDER THE LICENSING ACT 2003 

  

INTRODUCTION TIME 

GUIDE 

1)  The Chair of the Sub-Committee will open the meeting and invite all members of the Sub-

Committee, Officers, the applicant and anybody making representations, including witnesses (who have 

been given permission to appear) to introduce themselves. 

 

  

2)  The Chair will introduce the application and draw attention to the procedure to be followed as 

detailed below. 

 

  

CONSIDERA TION OF APPLICATIONS:  

  

N.B. The Sub-Committee have read all the papers.  All parties should use this time to 

present a summary of their key points and not to repeat the detail already provided in the 

report. 

 

  

3)  The Licensing Officer will report any further information relating to the application or 

representations. 

Where necessary the relevant parties will respond to these points during their submissions. 

 

  

4)  Responsible Authorities to present the key points of their representations; and clarify any points 

requested by the Authority.  Witnesses, given permission by the Authority, may appear.  

10 mins 

  

5)  The Sub-Committee to question the responsible authorities on matters arising from their submission.  

  

6)  Interested Parties to present the key points of their representations; and clarify any points 

requested by the Authority.  Witnesses, given permission by the Authority, may appear.  

10 mins 

  

7)  The Sub-Committee to question the objectors on matters arising from their submission.  

  

8) The applicant to present the key points of their application, address the representations and clarify 

any points requested by the Authority.  Witnesses given permission by the Authority may appear. 

10 mins 

  

9)  The Sub-Committee to question the applicants on matters arising from their submission.  

 

10)  If required, the Licensing Officer to clarify matters relating to the application and the Licensing 

Policy. 

 

 

11)  The Chair may give permission for any party to question another party in the order of 

representations     given above. 

 

 

CASE SUMMARIES 

 

  

12)  Responsible Authorities 2 

13)  Interested parties mins 

14)  Applicant each 
  

DELIBERA TION AND DECISION  
 

15)  The Sub-Committee may retire to consider its decision.  The Committee Clerk and Legal Officer will 

remain with the Sub-Committee. 

 

 

16)  If the Sub-Committee retires, all parties should remain available to provide further information or 

clarification. 

 

 

17)  The chair will announce their decision giving reasons and any conditions to be attached to the 

licence.  All parties will be informed of the decision in writing. 

 

 



    

 

 

 Licensing Service 
Regulatory Services 

Community Safety, Security and Resilience 
222 Upper Street 

London 
N1 1XR  

 
 
Report of: Director of Community Safety, Resilience and Community  
Meeting of: Licensing Sub-Committee 

Date:  29/09/2023 

Ward(s): Caledonian  

 

 
 

Subject: 

PREMISES LICENCE NEW APPLICATION 

Re: Crystals Pizza and Fried Chicken, 4 York 
Way, London  N1 9AA 

1. Synopsis  
1.1. This is an application for a variation of a premises licence under the Licensing Act 2003. 

1.2. The variation application is to allow: 

• The provision of Late Night Refreshment from 23:00 until 03:30 Monday to 
Sunday  

• Opening hours of the premises from 10:00 until 03:30 Monday to Sunday 

Page 1

Agenda Item B1



1.3. The existing premises licence allows:  
 

• The provision of Late Night Refreshment from 23:00 until 00:00 Sunday to 
Thursday and From 23:00 until 01:00 Friday and Saturday.  
 

• Opening hours from 10:00 until 00:00 Sunday to Thursday and From 10:00 
until 01:00 Friday and Saturday. 

1.4 Relevant Representations: 

Licensing Authority Yes 

Metropolitan Police Yes 

Noise No - Conditions Agreed 

Health and Safety No 

Trading Standards No 

Public Health No 

Safeguarding Children No 

London Fire Brigade No 

Local residents No  

Other bodies No 
 

2. Recommendations 
2.1. To determine the application for a variation of the premises licence under Section 

34 of the Licensing Act 2003; 

2.2. This premises is located in the Kings Cross Cumulative Impact Area therefore the 
Licensing Sub-Committee will need to consider Licensing Policy 3, which states 
that there is a presumption of refusal unless the Sub-Committee is satisfied that 
there will be no adverse cumulative impact on the licensing objectives. 

2.3. The applicant has accepted conditions suggested by Islington Council’s Noise 
Service.   

2.4. If the Licensing Sub-Committee grants the application it should be subject to: 
Page 2



i. Conditions prepared by the Licensing Officer which are consistent with the 
Operating Schedule (see appendix 4); and 

ii. Any conditions deemed appropriate by the Licensing Sub-Committee to promote 
the four licensing objectives. 

3. Background 

3.1 The property has held a premises licence for late night refreshment for the hours listed 
in 1.3 of the report since 28 January 2021.   
 

3.2 The application for a new premises licence had been refused by Members of the 
Licensing Sub Committee on 20 July 2021.  
 

3.3 The decision was appealed by the applicant on the grounds of 
a) The respondent's decision was against the weight of evidence before it. 
b) The respondent did not give sufficient weight to the Home Office Section 182 

Guidance when arriving at its decision. 
c)     That the refusal of Premises Licence application was neither proportionate nor 

appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives. 
 
3.4 On 28 January 2021 a Consent Order was agreed between the applicants Legal 

Representative and Islington Council.  A premises licence was subsequently issued to 
the premises, to the agreed terms.  
 

3.5 This is an application to vary that premises licence to extent the terminal hour for the 
provision of late night refreshment until 03:30 daily.  

 
3.6 The application received two letters of representation, these were from the Licensing 

Authority and Islington’s Police Licensing Team.   
 

3.7 The applicant has accepted conditions requested by Islington’s Noise Service.   
 

 

4. Implications  
4.1. Financial Implications  

4.1.1. The Head of Finance reports that the applicant has paid the application fee of 
£190.00.  Should the application be refused, the fee is not refundable. 

4.2. Legal Implications  

4.2.1. The legal implications are set out in Paragraph 2. 

Page 3



4.2.2. Legal advice will be provided at the meeting of the Licensing Sub-Committee as 
necessary. 

4.3. Environmental Implications and contribution to achieving a net zero carbon 
Islington by 2030 

4.3.1. The Licensing Sub-Committee need to consider the impacts that the proposals will 
have on the environment.  An impact is defined as any change to the environment, 
whether positive or negative, wholly or partially resulting from Council activities.  
Almost all human activity has some impact on the environment, and it is very 
unlikely that any activity will not have any implications. 

4.4. Equalities Impact Assessment 

4.4.1. The council must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the need to 
eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation, and to advance equality of 
opportunity, and foster good relations, between those who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and those who do not share it (section 149 Equality Act 
2010).  The council has a duty to have due regard to the need to remove or 
minimise disadvantages, take steps to meet needs, in particular steps to take 
account of disabled persons' disabilities, and encourage people to participate in 
public life.  The council must have due regard to the need to tackle prejudice and 
promote understanding. 

4.4.2. An Equalities Impact Assessment is not required in relation to this report, because 
this is a decision relating to a Premises Licence application under the Licensing 
Act 2003. 

4.5. Planning implications 

4.5.1 The Planning & Development section have the following comments to make in relation 
to the above application: 

The property is located within the Barnsbury Conservation Area but it is not listed. 

The property has an established use within Class E of the Town and Country Planning  
(Use Classes) Order 1987 (as amended).  

There are no planning conditions restricting opening hours.  

There are no planning enforcement cases relating to the use of the property. 

As such, there is no objection.  

 

 

Page 4



5. Conclusion and reasons for recommendations 

5.1. That the Licensing Sub-Committee determines this application. 

 

Appendices: 

Appendix 1: The application form; 

Appendix 2: The existing premises licence;  

Appendix 3: The representations; 

Appendix 4: Suggested conditions and map of premises location. 

 

Background papers: 

• None. 

Final report clearance: 

Signed by:  

Janice Gibbons 

Head of Regulatory Service 

Date: 18 September 2023 

Report author: Licensing Service 
Tel: 020 75027 3031 
E-mail: licensing@islington.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 5



Appendix 1

Page 6



Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

Will the schedule to provide indoor sporting events be subject to change if 
this application to vary is successful?

Yes No

Section 7 of 18

PROVISION OF BOXING OR WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENTS

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will the schedule to provide boxing or wrestling entertainments be subject 
to change if this application to vary is successful?

Yes No

Section 8 of 18

PROVISION OF LIVE MUSIC

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will the schedule to provide live music be subject to change if this 
application to vary is successful?

Yes No

Section 9 of 18

PROVISION OF RECORDED MUSIC

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will the schedule to provide recorded music be subject to change if this 
application to vary is successful?

Yes No

Section 10 of 18

PROVISION OF PERFORMANCES OF DANCE

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will the schedule to provide performances of dance be subject to change if 
this application to vary is successful?

Yes No

Section 11 of 18

PROVISION OF ANYTHING OF A SIMILAR DESCRIPTION TO LIVE MUSIC, RECORDED MUSIC OR PERFORMANCES OF 
DANCE

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will the schedule to provide anything similar to live music, recorded music or 
performances of dance be subject to change if this application to vary is 
successful?

Yes No

Section 12 of 18

PROVISION OF LATE NIGHT REFRESHMENT
Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



LEGEND

S

S 20

S 22

1m 2m 3m 4m 5m 10m

0

WC

Boiler

COLD
ROOM

KITCHEN

 GROUND FLOOR PLAN

 BASEMENT PLAN

N

T
i
l
l

Bins

H

H

S

S

S

S 20

S 22

DRAWING DATE

SCALE:

GENERAL NOTES:

4 York Way N1 9AA

Ground Floor and

Basement Plan

1:100 @A4

DRAWN BY:

OZ

28/05/2021

Copyright© Narts Architecture is the subject of

Intellectual Property Rights including copyright and

design right and shall not be reproduced,

copied,loaned or submitted to other party without

the written consent of Narts Architecture.

Only figured dimensions to be taken Any

Discrepancies to be reported to Narts Architecture

prior to setting out or ordering of any materials.

SHEET: 1

CONTROL BY:

MHR

TOTAL AREA

ADD

ADRESS

DRAWING NAME:

P
age 16

AutoCAD SHX Text
AMBIT OF LICENSED PREMISES

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
CCTV

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
SAFETY LIGHTS

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
SMOKE DETECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
FIRE ESCAPE KEEP CLEAR

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED FIRE ESCAPE SIGN (BS 5266)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
WC AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
FRIDGES

http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
http://www.Architecture4design.com
AutoCAD SHX Text_8
HEAT DETECTOR



PREMISES LICENCE 
LICENSING ACT 2003 

Premises licence 
number WK200072261 Date of original 

grant* 28 January 2023 

*An annual fee associated w ith this licence is to be paid on the anniversary of the 
original grant date. 

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description 
CRYSTALS PIZZA – FRIED CHICKEN 

4 YORK WAY  

Post town London Post code N1 9AA 

Telephone number 

Where the licence is time limited the dates 
Not Applicable  

Licensable activities authorised by the licence 
For the Ground Floor 

• The provision of late night refreshment

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities 

• The provision of late night refreshment:
Monday 
Tuesday 
Wednesday 
Thursday 
Friday 
Saturday 
Sunday 

23:00 
23:00 
23:00 
23:00 
23:00 
23:00 
23:00 

to 
to 
to 
to 
to 
to 
to 

00:00 
00:00 
00:00 
00:00 
01:00 
01:00 
00:00 

the following day 
the following day 

The opening hours of the premises: 
Monday 
Tuesday 
Wednesday 
Thursday 
Friday 
Saturday 
Sunday 

10:00 
10:00 
10:00 
10:00 
10:00 
10:00 
10:00 

to 
to 
to 
to 
to 
to 
to 

00:00 
00:00 
00:00 
00:00 
01:00 
01:00 
00:00 

the following day 
the following day 

Appendix 2

Page 17



 
Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/or off 
supplies 
Not applicable  

 
Name, (registered) address, telephone number and e-mail (where relevant) of 
holder of premises licence 
Ahmet Toprak 
4 York Way  
London 
N1 9AA 

 
Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where 
applicable) 
Not Applicable 

 
Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the 
premises licence authorises the supply of alcohol 
Not Applicable 

 
Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by 
designated premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises the supply of 
alcohol 
Not Applicable  

 
Islington Council 
Public Protection Division 
222 Upper Street 
London 
N1 1XR 
Tel: 020 7527 3031 
Email: licensing@islington.gov.uk 

 

Service Manager 
Commercial & Residential 

 

Date of Issue 

 

Page 18



 
Annex 1 - Mandatory conditions 
1. No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence: 

a) at a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the 
premises licence, or 

b) at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal 
licence or his personal licence is suspended. 

2. Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised by 
a person who holds a personal licence. 

3. All door supervisors shall be licensed by the Security Industry Authority. 
4. The admission of children to the exhibition of a film shall be restricted in 

accordance with the recommendation of a film classification body as defined in the 
Video Recordings Act 1984 or Islington Council acting as the licensing authority 
where it has given notice in section 20(3) of the Licensing Act 2003. 

There are further ‘Mandatory conditions’ applicable to licences authorising the supply of 
alcohol.  A full list of the current mandatory conditions is available from the licensing pages 
on Islington’s web site, www.islington.gov.uk.  This list is subject to change by order of the 
Secretary of State and licensees and other responsible persons are advised to ensure they 
are aware of the latest conditions. 
Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule 
None 
Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority 
1. a) A CCTV system covering the interior & exterior of the premises will be installed 

to current metropolitan police / Home office standards and shall be kept operational 
at all times the premises are open to the public. 
b) It shall be capable of taking a head & shoulders shot of persons entering the 
premises, of recording images to an evidential standard in any light and be capable 
of storing images for a minimum of 31 days. 
c) All staff who may work front of house shall be trained to operate the CCTV 
system and download images. 
d) At least one member of staff trained to operate the CCTV system & download 
images shall be on duty at all times the premises are open to the public. Footage 
shall be shown to the police and screenshots provided to them on request. Copies 
of downloaded images shall be provided to the police on a USB stick, CD or other 
acceptable means as soon as possible and in any case within 24 hours of the 
request. 
 

2. An incident book shall be kept at the premises, and made available to the police or 
authorised council officers, which will record the following: 
a) All crimes reported, 
b) Lost property, 
c) All ejections of customers, 
d) Any complaints received, 
e) Any incidents of disorder, 
f) Any seizure of drugs or offensive weapons, 
g) Any faults in the CCTV, 
h) Any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service 
 

3. Notices will be prominently displayed by the entry/ exit door and point of sale (as 
appropriate) advising customers: 
a) That CCTV in operation; 
b) Of the permitted hours for licensable activities & the opening times of the 
premises; 

Page 19

http://www.islington.gov.uk/


 
c) To respect residents, leave quietly, not to loiter outside the premises or in the 
vicinity and to dispose of litter legally. 
 

4. A fire risk assessment and emergency plan will be prepared and regularly reviewed. 
All staff will receive appropriate fire safety training and refresher training. 
 

5. The front of the premises shall be kept tidy at all times and be swept at close. 
 

6. Relevant notices will be prominently displayed by the entry/ exit door and point of 
sale (as appropriate) 

 
7. No deliveries will be received or rubbish removed from the premises between 22.00 

and 07.00. 
 
8. Any music played will only be played at background level. 
 
9. An incident book shall be kept at the premises and made available to the police or 

authorized council officers –see box b condition 2 for full details of the information 
to be recorded. 

 
10. A phone number for the premises shall be made available if required upon request 

to the police, any other responsible authority or any local resident to express any 
concerns caused by the operation of the premises. Any complaints and the outcome 
will be recorded in the incident book. 

 
Annex 4 – Plans 
Reference Number: OZ MHR  Dated: 28 May 2021 
 

Page 20



 

 

Premises Licence Summary 
Licensing Act 2003 

Premises licence 
number WK200072261  Date of original 

grant* 28 January 2023 

*An annual fee associated w ith this licence is to be paid on the anniversary of the 
original grant date. 

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description 
CRYSTALS PIZZA – FRIED CHICKEN 

4 YORK WAY  

Post town London  Post code N1 9AA 

Telephone number  

 
Where the licence is time limited the dates 
Not Applicable  

 
Licensable activities authorised by the licence  
For the Ground Floor 

• The provision of late night refreshment 

 
The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities 

• The provision of late night refreshment: 
Monday 
Tuesday 
Wednesday 
Thursday 
Friday 
Saturday 
Sunday 

23:00 
23:00 
23:00 
23:00 
23:00 
23:00 
23:00 

to 
to 
to 
to 
to 
to 
to 

00:00 
00:00 
00:00 
00:00 
01:00 
01:00 
00:00 

the following day  
the following day  
  

 
The opening hours of the premises: 

Monday 
Tuesday 
Wednesday 
Thursday 
Friday 
Saturday 
Sunday 

10:00 
10:00 
10:00 
10:00 
10:00 
10:00 
10:00 

to 
to 
to 
to 
to 
to 
to 

00:00 
00:00 
00:00 
00:00 
01:00 
01:00 
00:00 

the following day  
the following day  
  

 

Page 21



 
Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/or off 
supplies 
Not applicable  

 
Name, (registered) address, telephone number and e-mail (where relevant) of 
holder of premises licence 
Ahmet Toprak 
4 York Way  
London 
N1 9AA 

 
Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where 
applicable) 
Not Applicable 

 
State whether access to the premises by children is restricted or prohibited 
No restrictions 

 
Islington Council 
Public Protection Division 
222 Upper Street 
London 
N1 1XR 
Tel: 020 7527 3031 
 

 

 

 
 

 

Page 22



Licensing Authority Representation 

Licensing Act 2003 

Application for a variation to a premises licence in respect of: 

Crystal Pizza and Chicken, 4 York Way N1 9AA 

Licensable activities and timings applied for are to extend the hours for late night refreshments from 

1am on Fridays and Saturdays and to midnight Sunday to Thursday, to 3.30am each day. 

The grounds for the representation are: 

Public nuisance 

      Prevention of crime and disorder 

Licensing Policy Considerations 

Licensing Policy 6   -   Licensing Hours 

Licensing Policy 22 and 23 Public Nuisance and Noise associated with licensable activities. 

Licensing Policy 25 – Noise relating to deliveries from the premises. 

Issues of Concern 

The applicant has not put forward any mitigation or information in the operating schedule to 

demonstrate that these premises would not have a negative impact in an area saturated with outlets 

for take away and delivery of food. In fact, the applicant already has a late-night refreshment 

premises next door at 2b York Way which is open until 5am each day. 

Licensing Policy 6 - Licensing Hours- The hours applied for are outside of the recommended policy 

hours for premises selling hot food and drink supplied by takeaway and fast-food premises, which is 

Sundays to Thursday 11pm to midnight and on Fridays and Saturdays 11pm to 1am. 

Licensing Policy 22 & 23- The Licensing Authority is committed to protecting the amenity of 

residents and businesses in the vicinity of licensed premises, particularly when late hours have been 

sought. Where relevant representations are received, the Licensing Authority will impose 

appropriate restrictions and controls on the premises licence to prevent public nuisance and undue 

disturbance to residents from licensed premises. 

Licensing Police 25 - Delivery drivers from this and the other food outlets very close by will 

congregate outside while waiting to pick up orders. Islington now has several areas where delivery 

drivers are congregating and causing noise and anti-social behaviour, leading to complaints from 

residents and businesses. 

Recommendations 

The Licensing Authority suggests that should the Committee consider granting an extension of hours, 

the effect of delivery drivers in the local area be taken into account and ask that all deliveries be by 

non-motorised vehicles, there should be a plan of where riders would wait and pick up deliveries 

and, that the management of the premises monitor the behaviour of the drivers and operate a 

procedure for taking action on any drivers causing anti-social behaviour. 

Rep 1Appendix 3

Page 23



The Licensing Sub Committee should consider the application and the lack of information in the 

operating schedule, bearing in mind that the premises could attract customers from the many late 

night drinking premises in the area, who may loiter rather than leave the area and consider any 

resident’s representations, any conditions suggested by the Council’s Pollution Team and the Police 

and Islington Council’s Licensing Policy. 

 

Terrie Lane 

Licensing Manager 

Public Protection Division 

0207 527 3031 

licensing@islington.gov.uk 

 

24/08/2023 

Page 24

mailto:licensing@islington.gov.uk


Licensing Team Manager, 
Public Protection Division, 
Environment & Regeneration, 
Islington Council, 
222 Upper Street, 
London N1 1XR 

Islington Police Licensing 
Team, 
Islington Police Station, 
2 Tolpuddle Street, 
Islington, 
London N1 0YY 

Your ref: WK/230018568 
Our ref: NIH231760 

28th August 2023 

LNR Premises Licence application – Crystal Pizza & Fried Chicken, 4 York Way, 

London, N1 9AA 

Proposed variation to the premises licence: 

Late Night Refreshments:  

Monday – Sunday – 23:00 – 03:30 

Opening Hours: 

Monday – Sunday – 10:00 – 03:30 

Reference: WK/230023687 

Date for last representations on notification – 30/08/2023 

__________ 

Dear Licensing Authority, 

With reference to the above application the Metropolitan Police, as a Responsible Authority, 

object to the Premises Licence Application for the extension of late night refreshment hours. 

We believe if this application was granted it would undermine the Licensing Objectives as the 

application currently requests operating times out of framework hours for trading and does 

not provide any clear case for exceptional cultural or other reasons or additional 

safeguarding measures as to why there would be no adverse impact in regards to the 

potential for crime and disorder or anti-social behaviour resulting. 

The applicant for this premises is also the Licensee for Crystal Kebab 2B YORK WAY N1 

which is located next door. 

Rep 2

Page 25



The above premises Crystal Kebab initially came to Police attention in June 2023 following a 

number of incidents, I have provided a brief timeline of events. 

On Thursday 01st June 2023 around 2005 hours, Police officers attended the venue following 

reports two customers had made threats towards a members of staff. The pair verbally 

racially abused them and referred to their ethnicity before throwing food (sauces) at them. 

One of the member stated to officers the suspects may have been armed as one was seen 

putting his hands in their pockets. The suspect left prior to police arrival. The investigation 

was closed as the victims did not wish to pursue the matter.  

In the same month on Wednesday 15th June 2023 at 0140 hours police were called to the 

premises following a report of three suspects threatening staff members with violence. 

Further information was relayed that one of the suspects was armed with a knife. Police 

officers attended the venue and were informed by staff members that CCTV was not working 

and had not recorded the incident. The report was closed. 

On Friday 16th June 2023 at 2235 hours the premises was visited by the Islington Licensing 

team. Pc Darren Emmanuel spoke to the PLH Mr Ahmet Terpak who stated the fault with the 

CCTV had been reported and an engineer was due to attend the following week to remedy 

the issues. 

On Wednesday 12th July 2023 at 0119 hours police were called to reports of a fight. It 

transpired that an altercation had taken place between a male and staff from the venue after 

the male had asked to use the toilets. It transpired that a staff member has armed himself 

with a metal bar and hit the male in the shoulder as he believed he may have been in 

possession of a weapon due to his body language. 

Staff informed officers that there was a fault with the CCTV system and it would not have 

recorded the incident. 

__________ 

Mr Toprak was invited in for a panel to discuss the incident and subsequent concerns.  

When discussing the matter concerning the CCTV system Mr Toprak had contacted an 

engineer following the visit by Pc Emanuel in June 23.  

Mr Toprak stated that he did not check the CCTV system as there was never any trouble at 

the venue and assumed the system was recording. He could not produce any documents to 

support that any CCTV system checks were being conducted. Mr Toprak did not produce 

any documents to support that incidents were being recorded/documented. It was pointed 

out to Mr Toprak that he was not adhering to the conditions Annex 2 1, 2 and 3 under the 

premises licence. 

It was agreed the licence required updating to include further conditions to assist Mr Toprak 

to promote the licensing objectives and demonstrate that he is a responsible operator. 

The premises is located in the Kings Cross area and is considered to be one of the busiest 

and challenging areas in Islington. It is therefore paramount that any premises seeking to 

operate in this area with extended hours does so to a high standard.  

I respectfully ask the committee to take into account the serious concerns raised in this 

representation and not grant the extension of the hours. Page 26



PC Petros Loizou 

Pc Petros Loizou 

Licensing Officer 

Islington Police Licensing Team 

Metropolitan Police Service  

Islington Police Station 

Tolpuddle Street N1 0YY  

M: 07799133204 

w: www.met.police.uk e: Petros.Loizou@met.police.uk 

Page 27

http://www.met.police.uk/
mailto:Petros.Loizou@met.police.uk
https://www.facebook.com/metpoliceuk
https://twitter.com/metcc


Appendix 4 

Conditions Consistent with the Operating Schedule 

None 

Existing Premises Licence Conditions 

1) a) A CCTV system covering the interior & exterior of the premises will be installed to
current metropolitan police / Home office standards and shall be kept operational at all
times the premises are open to the public.
b) It shall be capable of taking a head & shoulders shot of persons entering the premises,
of recording images to an evidential standard in any light and be capable of storing
images for a minimum of 31 days.
c) All staff who may work front of house shall be trained to operate the cctv system and
download images.
d) At least one member of staff trained to operate the cctv system & download images
shall be on duty at all times the premises are open to the public. Footage shall be shown
to the police and screenshots provided to them on request. Copies of downloaded
images shall be provided to the police on a usb stick, cd or other acceptable means as
soon as possible and in any case within 24 hours of the request.

2) An incident book shall be kept at the premises, and made available to the police or a
uthorised council officers, which will record the following:
A) All crimes reported,
B) Lost property,
C) All ejections of customers,
D) Any complaints received,
E) Any incidents of disorder,
F) Any seizure of drugs or offensive weapons,
G) Any faults in the CCTV,
H) Any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service

3) Notices will be prominently displayed by the entry/ exit door and point of sale (as
appropriate) advising customers:
A) That CCTV in operation;
B) Of the permitted hours for licensable activities & the opening times of the premises;
D) To respect residents, leave quietly, not to loiter outside the premises or in the vicinity
and to dispose of litter legally.

4) A fire risk assessment and emergency plan will be prepared and regularly reviewed. All
staff will receive appropriate fire safety training and refresher training.

5) The front of the premises shall be kept tidy at all times and be swept at close

6) Relevant notices will be prominently displayed by the entry/ exit door and point of sale
(as appropriate)

7) No deliveries will be received or rubbish removed from the premises between 22.00 and
07.00.

Page 28



8) Any music played will only be played at background level.

9) An incident book shall be kept at the premises and made available to the police or 
authorized council officers –see box b condition 2 for full details of the information to be 
recorded.

10) A phone number for the premises shall be made available if required upon request to the 
police, any other responsible authority or any local resident to express any concerns 
caused by the operation of the premises. Any complaints and the outcome will be 
recorded in the incident book.

Conditions proposed by Islington’s Noise Service – Agreed 

1) Noise, vibration, or odours shall not emanate from the premises to cause a nuisance to
nearby properties.

2) In the event of a noise/odour nuisance complaint substantiated by an authorised officer,
the licensee shall take appropriate measures within a time frame set by and agreed with
the Council Officers to prevent any further recurrence of that nuisance.

Page 29



P
age 30



    

 

 

Regulatory Services/Licensing 
222 Upper Street, London 

N1 1XR 

Report of: Director Community Safety, Resilience and Security 

Meeting of: Licensing Sub-Committee 

Date:  27/09/2023 

Ward(s): Hillrise 

 

Subject: 

PREMISES LICENCE NEW APPLICATION 

Re: THE ROBIN, 29 CROUCH HILL, N4 4AP 

1. Synopsis  

1.1. This is an application for a new premise licence under the Licensing Act 2003. 

1.2. The new application is to allow: 

• The sale of alcohol, On and Off the premises, Mondays to Thursdays, 

from 12:00 to 23:00, Fridays and Saturdays, from 12:00 to midnight, 

Sundays from 12:00 to 22:30. 

• Live music, Tuesdays, and Wednesdays, from 20:00 to 22:00, 

Sundays, from 18:00 to 20:00. 

• Recorded music, Fridays, and Saturdays, from 21:00 to 00:00 

• The performance of dance, Mondays to Thursdays from 12:00 to 

23:00, Fridays and Saturdays, from 12:00 to 00:00, Sundays from 12:00 

to 22:30. 

• Late night refreshment, Fridays, and Saturdays, from 23:00 to 00:00 

Page 31

Agenda Item B2



• The premises opening hours, Mondays to Thursdays, from 12:00 to 

23:00, Fridays and Saturdays from 12:00 to 00:00, Sundays from 12:00 

to 22:30. 

• On New Years Eve and the night preceding a Bank Holiday from 12:00 

to 00:00. 

1.3. Relevant Representations: 

Licensing Authority No 

Metropolitan Police No: conditions agreed 

Noise No: conditions agreed 

Health and Safety No 

Trading Standards No 

Public Health No 

Safeguarding Children No 

London Fire Brigade No 

Local residents Yes: One local resident 

Other bodies No:  

 

2. Recommendations 

2.1. To determine the application for a new premises licence under Section 17 of the 

Licensing Act 2003; 

2.2. If the Licensing Sub-Committee grants the application it should be subject to: 

i. Conditions prepared by the Licensing Officer which are consistent with the 

Operating Schedule (see appendix 3); and 

ii. Any conditions deemed appropriate by the Licensing Sub-Committee to promote 

the four licensing objectives. 

3. Background 

Page 32



3.1. This new premises licence application was received by the Council’s licensing 

service on 7th August 2023. The applicant has amended the hours of operation 

from the hours on the application to: Mondays to Thursday, from 12:00 to 23:00, 

Fridays and Saturdays from 12:00 to 00:00 and on Sundays, from 12:00 to 22:30 

3.2. This property has previously been licensed. 

3.3. Carouse London Limited were the previous licence holder, however due to the 

company being dissolved, the premises licence lapsed. A copy of that licence is 

attached at Appendix 2.  

3.4. The licensing authority received four letters in opposition to the application from 

local residents. On receipt of the representations, the applicant wrote to each of 

the representors responding to the concerns they had raised along with a copy of 

the conditions that have been agreed with the Responsible Authorities, following 

that three of the representors withdrew their objection. Conditions have been 

agreed with the Council’s Noise Service and the Metropolitan Police 

3.5. At the time of writing this report no additional comments from the remaining 

representor have been received.   

4. Implications  

4.1. Financial Implications  

4.1.1. The Head of Finance reports that the applicant has paid the application fee of 

£190.00. Should the application be refused, the fee is not refundable. 

4.2. Legal Implications  

4.2.1. The legal implications are set out in Paragraph 2. 

4.2.2. Legal advice will be provided at the meeting of the Licensing Sub-Committee as 

necessary. 

4.3. Environmental Implications and contribution to achieving a net zero carbon 

Islington by 2030 

4.3.1. The Licensing Sub-Committee need to consider the impacts that that proposals 

will have on the environment.  An impact is defined as any change to the 

environment, whether positive or negative, wholly or partially resulting from 

Council activities.  Almost all human activity has some impact on the environment, 

and it is very unlikely that any activity will not have any implications. 

4.4. Equalities Impact Assessment 

Page 33



4.4.1. The council must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the need to 

eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation, and to advance equality of 

opportunity, and foster good relations, between those who share a relevant 

protected characteristic and those who do not share it (section 149 Equality Act 

2010).  The council has a duty to have due regard to the need to remove or 

minimise disadvantages, take steps to meet needs, in particular steps to take 

account of disabled persons' disabilities, and encourage people to participate in 

public life.  The council must have due regard to the need to tackle prejudice and 

promote understanding. 

4.4.2. An Equalities Impact Assessment is not required in relation to this report, because 

this is a decision relating to a Premises Licence application under the Licensing 

Act 2003. 

4.5. Planning implications 

4.5.1. The Planning & Development section have the following comments to make in 

relation to the above. 

4.5.2. The building is not statutorily listed, and it is located within the Stroud Green 

Conservation Area (CA39) which is subject to an Article 4 Direction removing 

certain permitted development rights regarding development fronting the highway. 

4.5.3. The ground floor unit has been operating as a public house, since at least 1987 

according to historic planning records, (sui generis) and is, therefore considered to 

be, lawful. 

4.5.4. There is no planning history or planning conditions relating to the hours of 

operation for the ground floor unit. 

4.5.5. There are no ongoing enforcement investigations concerning this site. 

5. Conclusion and reasons for recommendations 

5.1. That the Licensing Sub-Committee determines this application. 

Appendices: 

Appendix 1: application form. 

Appendix 2: lapsed premises licence. 

Appendix 3: representation and applicant response. 

Appendix 4: suggested conditions and map of premises location. 

Page 34



Background papers: 

• None.

Final report clearance: 

Authorised by:  

 Terrie Lane 

Licensing Manager 

Date: 15th September 2023

Report author: Licensing Service 

Tel: 020 75027 3031 

E-mail: licensing@islington.gov.uk

Page 35

mailto:licensing@islington.gov.uk


 

Page 36



Appendix 1

Page 37



           
         

        
   

               
 

                    

                 
  

       

  
        

      

 

  

  
 

 

         

  
   

 
   

 

                
                

    

  
 

 

         

                
                

  
   

 

 
   

Page 38



   
 

  

             
                

          

   
     

   

   

         

 
   

  

   

        
  

 

              
  

            

     
    

  
     

             
       

     
    

  
        

                 
           

 
   

Page 39



        

          

           

         

         

          

            
      

          

         

        

        
            

      

         

        
  

  
    

        
          

      

         

   

 
   

Page 40



           
            

       

  
   

   

        

     
  

  
   

  

   
   

  

         

   

 
   

Page 41



        
            

       

  

 
         

         
    

        

        
            

           
       
          

         
    

 
   

Page 42



           
            

           

  

   
   

         
            

      

         

 

 

         
   

 

           
           

         

  
  

  

   
    

    
   

   

           

      
       
  

       

 
   

Page 43



          
         

             
     

 

         
            

        

         

  

         
     

 

 

           
          

            

 
  

   
 

  

  
   

   

        
       

 

          
  

 
   

Page 44



Page 45



 

 

 

           
            

       

 
  

   
  

            

                

       
              

    
      

        
    

    
       

  
  

               
  

 
       

            
      

     

          

  
       

 
       

        

      

 
   

Page 46



   
    

                  
       

  
   

    

        

       

              
 

              
   

        

               

             
           

            
              

 

              
          

            
  

             
          
           

          
            

          
          

        
        

        

             
            

         
           

              
              
            

              
       

               
           

              
            
          
        

 
   

Page 47



  

      
         

            
     

 

              

  

                
            

              
                

         
              

       
            

             
               

             

 
   

Page 48



Brave Sir Robin, Crouch Hill, Finsbury Park, London, N4
Approximate Area = 1591 sq ft / 147.8 sq m

For identification only - Not to 

Cellar
21'5 (6.53)
× 12'4 (3.76)

22'3 (6.78) max
× 9'5 (2.87) max

Ba

Lounge Area
507 (15.42) max
× 22' (6.71) max

RICS
Certified
Property
Measurer

GROUND FLOOR 1591 SQFT

Floor plan produced in accordance with RICS Property Measurement Standards 
International Property Measurement Standards (IPMS2 Residential) © nichecom 2022
Produced for Fleurets Limited. REF: 819814

Page 49



Appendix 2

Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



From:
To: Licensing
Subject: The Robin ref: WK/230024324
Date: 04 September 2023 09:12:57

[External]

PREVENTION OF PUBLIC NUISANCE
I OBJECT TO EXTENDING THE LICENSING HOURS BEYOND 23.00.

Sparsholt Road is a small residential road and many residents have their
Bedrooms to the front of the street. The previous Pub had some outside
tables for the smokers, however on busy evenings, noisy drinking crowds
stood on the pavements, blocking the road. The noise at night and the
mess and litter in the morning,  I consider a public nuisance
and therefore ask  for 11pm closing closing time.
 Thank you

Appendix 3

Rep 1

Page 60



Dear 

My name is Nick, manager of The Robin. I am in receipt of your email to the 
council. I acknowledge your fears and concerns. And I am delighted to let you 
know that after consultation with the Police and the Council Noise Team the 
following are agreed hours, which I think will go some ways to allaying your 
concerns about late hours. 

Monday – Thursday 
12 – 2300 

Friday & Saturday 
12 – 0000 

Sunday 
12 – 2230 

Further, no drinks to be allowed outside from 10pm. All tables/benches to be 
collapsed at 10 as well. At closing time management will ensure that all 
customers are not to congregate outside of the pub and Sparsholt Street but to 
disperse from the area.  

I hope these conditions go some way in allaying your fears about noisy drinking 
crowds late at night. 

Should you wish to talk further, I am happy to speak directly with you via the 
following email address  also happy to have a meeting 
in person at the pub should you wish it. And here is my mobile 
you know you can reach me directly anytime now, or in the future should any 
issues arise regarding noise or litter, or anything else pub related. I take 
personal responsibility and will deal with any issues promptly.  

Kind regards, 
Nick  

Response 1

Page 61



Appendix 4 

Suggested conditions of approval consistent with the operating schedule 

1. The disposal of empty bottles into the bins outside will not be permitted between the hours of

22:00 and 07:00.

Conditions agreed with the Metropolitan Police 

1. In the event that crime or serious disorder is, or appears to have been, committed on the
premises, the management will immediately ensure that:

a) The police and, where appropriate, the London Ambulance Service, are called
immediately.

b) As far as is safe and reasonably practicable, all measures will be taken to apprehend any
identified suspects pending the arrival of the police.

c) As far as is safe and reasonably practicable, all measures will be taken to preserve any
identified crime scene pending the arrival of the police.

d) Any and all appropriate measures are taken to fully protect the safety of all persons
present on the premises at all times during operating hours.

2. An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to the police or an
authorised officer, which will record:

a) Any and all allegations of crime or disorder reported at the venue

b) Any and all complaints received by any party

c) Any faults in the CCTV system

d) Any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service

e) Any and all ejections of patrons

f) Any and all seizures of drugs or offensive weapons

g) Any refusal of the sale of alcohol

3. CCTV shall be installed, operated, and maintained, to function all times that the premises is open
for licensable activities. Said CCTV will comply with the following criteria:

a) The licensee will ensure that the system is checked every two weeks to ensure that the
system is working properly and that the date and time are correct.

b) A record of these checks, showing the date and name of the person checking, will be
kept, and made available to the police or other authorised officer on request.

c) The Police will be informed if the system will not be operating for longer than one day of
business for any reason.

d) One camera will show a close-up of the entrance to the premises, to capture a clear, full-
length image of anyone entering.

e) The system will provide full coverage of the interior of the premises and any exterior part
of the premises accessible to the public.

Page 62



f) The system will record in real time and recordings will be date and time stamped. 

g) At all times during operating hours, there will be at least 1 member of staff on the 
premises who can operate the system sufficiently to allow Police or authorised Council 
officers to view footage on request. 

h) Recordings will be kept for a minimum of 31 days and downloaded footage will be 
provided free of charge to the police or other authorised officers on request (subject to 
the Data Protection Act 2018) within 24 hours of any request. 

i) Signage stating that CCTV is in operation will be clearly and prominently displayed at the 
premises. 

j) The use of CCTV at the premises shall be registered with the Information Commissioners 
Office [ICO]. 

4. The premises will operate the 'Challenge 25' proof of age scheme. 

a) All staff will be fully trained in its operation. 

b) Only physical production of suitable forms of photographic identification, such as passport 
or UK driving licence, or a holographically marked PASS scheme cards, will be accepted. A 
screenshot or digital document copy will not be sufficient. 

5. The licence holder will at all times maintain adequate levels of staff and security. Such staff and 
security levels will be disclosed, on request, to the Licensing Authority and the Police. 

a) The need for door supervisors will be assessed by way of risk assessment and cognisance 
will be taken of any police advice. 

6. The licensee shall ensure that all staff are trained on relevant matters, including the conditions of 
the premises licence, age restricted products and [if they are ever left in charge of the shop] the 
operation of the CCTV system and how to deal with visits from authorised officers. The licensee 
shall keep written records of training and instructions given to each member of staff, detailing 
the areas covered to include the Licensing Objectives, identifying persons under 25, making a 
challenge, acceptable proof of age & checking it, making & recording a refusal, avoiding conflict 
& responsible alcohol retailing. Staff shall sign to confirm that they have received and understood 
the training. All staff who work at the till will be trained for their role on induction and be given 
refresher training every six months. The written training records kept for each staff member will 
be produced to police & authorised council officers on request. 

7. The premises shall not be hired out to any third party. 

8. The premises to operate a zero-tolerance policy to drugs. Any customer suspected of possessing 
or using drugs on the premises will be immediately removed from the premises by the DPS, 
barred from entering the premises again and shall be reported to the Police. Notices to this effect 
shall be prominently displayed on the premises. 

9. The premises licence holder shall endeavour to eliminate or minimise any nuisance arising out of 
its licensable activities. In doing so the premises licence holder will work with enforcement 
authorities where any issues are identified. A complaints procedure will be maintained in order 
that local residents have a means of contact if necessary. A direct telephone number for the 
manager at the premises shall be publicly available at the times the premises is open. The 
telephone number is to be made available to residents and businesses in the vicinity. 

10. A fire safety risk assessment shall be completed as per government guidelines on an annual basis 
(Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005). (Maximum venue capacity will be maintained at a 
level dictated by said risk assessment, as per legislation). 

Page 63



11. The beer garden/outside drinking area shall be cleared of drinking customers by 22:00. No drinks 
shall be taken outside after 2200 hrs. A maximum of 6 smokers shall be permitted to stand 
outside the frontage after 2200 hrs once the outdoor has closed. The premises licence holder 
shall ensure that any patrons smoking outside the premises do so in in an orderly manner and 
are supervised by staff so as to ensure that there is no public nuisance or obstruction of the 
public highway. 

12. The premises to operate a zero-tolerance policy to drugs. Any customer suspected of possessing 
or using drugs on the premises will be immediately removed from the premises by the DPS, 
barred from entering the premises again and shall be reported to the Police.  Notices to this 
effect shall be prominently displayed on the premises. 

13. Off supplies of alcohol must be provided in sealed containers, except for such supply to persons 
seated within any authorised external consumption area. 

14. Where a takeaway service is provided for the supply of alcohol the licensee shall take appropriate 
steps to ensure the local area is not adversely effected by such supply.  

15. There shall be no motorised deliveries of take-away food or drink from the premises at any time. 

16. The premises licence holder shall ensure that any third party deliver/courier company is instructed 

to comply with the following: 

a) Any refusals will be logged by the delivery driver. Records of all refusals will be obtained 

from the delivery company and provided to the relevant authorities upon request; and 

b) Couriers will be trained on relevant aspects of the Licensing Act 2003 including underage 

sales, sales to a person who is drunk, obtaining alcohol for a child or a person who is drunk 

and delivering alcohol to someone under the age of 18. 

17. Any person or automated system taking an order for the supply of alcohol on behalf of the premises 

licence holder will inform customers that proof of age by way of photographic driving licence, 

passport, or a form of identification with the PASS hologram may be required before alcohol is 

supplied in accordance with the Challenge 25 age verification scheme. 

Conditions agreed with the Council’s Noise Service 

1. Noise, vibration, and odour must not emanate from the premises so as to cause a nuisance to nearby 
properties. 

2. In the event of a noise/odour nuisance complaint substantiated by an authorised officer, the licensee 
shall take appropriate measures to prevent any recurrence. Upon direction by the Licensing Team, 
this may include the licensee appointing a noise consultant registered with the Institute of Acoustics 
or Association of Noise Consultants to prepare a scheme of sound insulation and noise control 
measures, which may include the installation of a noise limiting device, to prevent persons in the 
neighbourhood from being unreasonably disturbed by noise of music from the premises.  The 
scheme shall be submitted for approval by the Council, and the approved scheme fully implemented 
to the satisfaction of the Council and the licensee notified in writing accordingly, prior to the premises 
being used for music. 

3. If a noise limiting device is installed, sound levels shall be set so as not to cause a nuisance to the 
nearest noise sensitive premises and levels agreed with the Council’s Pollution Team. A calibration 
certificate shall be provided by your acoustic consultant to show maximum levels in dB(L) Leq(5min) 
and dB(A) Leq(5min), as well as in the 125 and 63 Hz frequency bands, measured within the venue. 

4. If there are any changes in the distribution and type of loudspeakers or amplification equipment 
serving the sound system, then the noise control system shall be re-calibrated to ensure the music 

Page 64



levels given above are not exceeded.  The calibration certificate shall be forwarded to the Licensing 
team. 

5. The licensee shall ensure that the limiters are tamper-proof, are located in a secure, lockable 
cupboard or similar location and access restricted to the licensee or a designated manager and are 
maintained and calibrated as instructed by the Acoustic Consultant or if the council requests an up-
to-date calibration certificate if substantiated noise complaints are received, and the calibration 
certificates shall be submitted to the Council. 

6. Patrons of the premises shall be encouraged, by signs within the premises visible at all exit points, 
to disperse from the area of the premises quietly and quickly. 

7. Waste collections and the delivery of licensable goods to the venue shall be restricted to the hours 
between 07:00 and 22:00 Monday-Saturday. No waste collections or deliveries shall be made on a 
Sunday or Bank Holiday. 

8. The licensee shall practice best endeavours to ensure that no internal combustion engine vehicles 
are used for deliveries from the premises.  

9. If internal combustion engine vehicles are used for deliveries from the premises, the licensee shall 
ensure that drivers do not park or loiter in the vicinity of residential premises.  

10. Alcohol shall not be sold or supplied, via delivery from the premises, otherwise than to persons 
purchasing food and is ancillary to their meal.  

11. The premises will operate a no idling policy.  

12. Delivery drivers will conduct the delivery in a manner that will not cause a noise disturbance to the 
occupiers of any residential properties surrounding the delivery address. 

Page 65



P
age 66


	Agenda
	B1 Crystals Pizza and Fried Chicken, 4 York Way, N1 9AA - Premises licence variation
	LSC Report 27 September 2023 - 4 York Way
	Subject:
	PREMISES LICENCE  APPLICATION
	Re: Crystals Pizza and Fried Chicken, 4 York Way, London  N1 9AA
	1. Synopsis
	2. Recommendations
	3. Background
	4. Implications
	5. Conclusion and reasons for recommendations


	islington-1404368-Islington_Application_to_vary_a_premises_licence SELEL2604 190_Redacted
	islington-1404368-Ground Floor Plan
	Sheets and Views
	Existing Ground Floor


	Two Reps
	Police Rep
	LA Rep Crystal Pizza and Fried Chicken 4 York Way

	ADPFB21.tmp
	Subject:
	PREMISES LICENCE  APPLICATION
	Re: Crystals Pizza and Fried Chicken, 4 York Way, London  N1 9AA
	1. Synopsis
	2. Recommendations
	3. Background
	4. Implications
	5. Conclusion and reasons for recommendations


	ADPFCAF.tmp
	Annex 1 - Mandatory conditions
	Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule
	None
	Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority
	Annex 4 – Plans
	State whether access to the premises by children is restricted or prohibited


	B2 The Robin, 29 Crouch Hill, N4 4AP - New premises licence
	LSC Front Sheet
	LSCReportCrouchHill29
	Appendix 1
	The Robin Building Plan
	LN17914-280918
	Appendix 4
	map





